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May 12, 2011

Department of Environmental Protection,  

105 S Railroad St, 

Philippi, WV 26416-1150
RE: Article 11/NPDES Permit No.  WV1002619

Please accept the following comments on the proposed 401 Certification for the Coresco, LLC Coal Refuse Disposal Area # 4 on behalf of the approximately 2000 members of the West Virginia Chapter of Sierra Club.  We recognize that coal ash has to go somewhere, but we believe that this facility does not adequately protect the environment, and that reasonable efforts to reduce, contain, and treat pollution must be added before 401 Certification is granted.
1.  The CORESCO 401 Application infers that much of the area is of low ecological value and is partially reclaimed mineland.  They further imply that, because of past abuses, water quality is already degraded and use that as a justification for allowing further degradation.  This is directly contrary to the intent of the Clean Water Act to restore all waters to fishable, swimmable conditions.  The fact that the applicant has failed to establish high value ecological functions on their own reclaimed mines does not give much confidence that they will do so if the Certification is granted.  We recommend that WV-DEP should insist on enforceable reclamation efforts to assure high quality water and improvements in the condition of the receiving stream.
2.  The Application repeatedly makes the claim that most of the wetlands identified on the property are isolated and do not have a significant nexus to down-valley tributaries, and that they are not connected to lower streams, wetlands or other water features.  Such a claim makes no sense given the topography of the area and the very limited acreage involved.  Although these wetlands are small, the lack of an apparent surface drainage connection can not be inferred to imply that subsurface connections do not exist.  This is particularly true given that much of the area is partially reclaimed minelands, hence the subsurface hydrology has been extensively altered and can not be easily predicted by surface observations or from the shallow pits that were dug.  While each wetland is individually small, the cumulative impact is large and is likely to have substantial benefits in terms of water quality improvements.  This is evident from the photos showing obvious iron staining associated with some of the water features.  We recommend that the Certification clearly establish the significant connections and nexus to water quality in downstream waters, specifically Crooked Run and the Monongahela River.
3.  The application further claims that there are limited functional values associated with these wetlands.  However, no effort was made to quantify the water quality benefits of these numerous wetlands.  Given that the receiving stream is already highly degraded, we recommend that the Certification be conditioned on significant improvements in water quality from the site.
4.  The Coresco Application is completely lacking in any mitigation plan.  The proposed Mitigation and Compensation Agreement fails to identify any specific location, area, or wetland values that would be met.  It is merely an assertion that a suitable mitigation plan will be identified some time in the future.  Coresco has been notably unreliable in such assertions in the past.  They, or their affiliates and parent company (Longview/GenPower) had previously assured the public that they would not use water form the Monongahela River and instead would clean up mine pool waters and use it as cooling water for the Longview Power Plant.  They used this claim as a basis for a “Zero Discharge” NPDES permit.  But once they had the permit, they revised their plans and now plan to use Monongahela River water for cooling.  This is relevant because the Shannopin mine pool waters they had planned to use are now being discharge to Dunkard Creek with pollutant levels that have largely eliminated aquatic life for the five miles of Dunkard Creek below their discharge.  Hence we insist that WV-DEP require fully developed and publicly reviewed mitigation plans before any 401 Certification is issued.
5.  Coresco in their MOD 26 to NPDES permit WV1002619 states that 

“Due to historic water quality associated with the existing refuse disposal area permit O101593, it is not anticipated that chemical treatment will be necessary to meet effluent limits at the proposed outlets 005, 006, 007, 008 and 009.  The only anticipated pollution problem is expected to be the contribution of sediment to the receiving stream.”

This statement ignores all of the recent scientific evidence of the ongoing contamination and water quality impacts associated with coal ash disposal.  In particular, we are concerned about the high levels of Total Dissolved Solids, high Electrical Conductivity, and elevated levels of various metals associated with drainage from coal ash facilities.  These metals include arsenic, cadmium, chromium, iron, aluminum, selenium, lead, mercury, and a variety of other metals that are known to leach from coal ash.  These concerns are heightened by the apparent lack of any landfill liner or leachate collection system adequate to protect the ground water at the site.  We recommend that any 401 Certification be conditioned on groundwater protection, leak detection, leachate collection, monitoring, enforceable effluent limits, and a treatment facility adequate to remediate the TDS, conductivity, and heavy metal pollutants likely to discharge from this facility.
6.  We object to the characterization of the disposal of coal combustion byproducts at this site as a “beneficial use”.  Plans to dispose of coal refuse from nearby mines are being used as a smokescreen to justify inadequate regulation of what is principally a coal combustion products disposal facility.  In fact, addition of acid-producing mine wastes to coal ash materials in a site where direct contact with water is assured represents precisely the kinds of conditions that US-EPA has identified as most likely to exacerbate leaching of toxic heavy metals from the coal ash.  We recommend that WV-DEP determine that this facility is principally a coal combustion products disposal site, that a “beneficial use” exemption is not appropriate, and that the facility be required to meet all applicable rules for landfills that would therefore apply.

In summary, we object to the issuance of the 401 Certification as it is currently being proposed, and urge that complete pollution control and wetland mitigation plans be re-advertised for public review before any issuance of the 401 Certification.

Sincerely,

James Kotcon, Chair

Energy Committee

West Virginia Chapter of Sierra Club

414 Tyrone Avery Road

Morgantown, WV 26508

304-594-3322 (home)

jkotcon@gmail.com
